
18 July 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee
will meet on

Friday, 26 July 2019
beginning at

10:30 am
in

Bursledon Windmill

TO: Councillors Broadhurst, and Cross 
County Councillors Grajewski, House and Kyrle
Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and Mrs Rich
Matt Blythe, Local Area Manager 
Cerian Gale, and Deborah Neubauer - Hampshire Cultural Trust 

Staff Contact: Catherine Collins, Case Management Officer Tel: 023 
8068 8326 Email: catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

AGENDA

1. Apologies    

2. Election of Chair for 2019/2020    

3. Election of Vice-Chair for 2019/2020    

4. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 2) 

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 28 February 2019. 

5. Curator's Report    (Pages 3 - 36)

6. Finance Report    (Pages 37 - 38)

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN



7. Date and Venue of Next Meeting    



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 28 February 2019  (Time Not Specified – Time Not Specified)

PRESENT:

Representing Hampshire Cultural Trust -  Deborah Neubauer and Emma 
Banks
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Grajewski and Kyrle

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council – Matt Blythe

Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillor Andrewes

Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alan Broadhurst, 
Councillor Malcolm Cross, Councillor Keith House and Councillor Jane Rich

31. MINUTES

Minutes from the meeting dated 12 July and 15 November 2018 were 
agreed as correct record.
Members agreed that Matters Arising from Minutes would be added onto 
future agendas.

32. MATTERS ARISING FROM MINUTES

Councillor Andrews congratulated Hampshire Cultural Trust on how well the 
restructuring of the organisation went. 
She also added that the Heritage Sunday Event held by Friends of 
Bursledon Station with the Windmill and Bursledon Brickworks was a great 
success.
Participants were able to travel between sites and the attending numbers 
were really good.

33. CURATOR'S REPORT

Emma Banks, representing the Hampshire Cultural Trust delivered the 
report on activities at, or relating to, Bursledon Windmill, covering period 
October 2018 – Jan 2019.
Two Halloween events took place in October, Spooky Mill and Halloween 
Make and Take were attended by over 300 visitors. Dragons and Fairies 
event in November delivered good visitor numbers and was very successful. 
Christmas Fair and Santa’s Grotto was very well attended and was the last 
event of 2018 with the site being closed for the months of December and 

1

Agenda Item 4



January. 
The Mill would be reopening on the second of March.

Training of the volunteers was ongoing and as Gary, the miller, was now 
employed by the museum. Gary would be working every Friday instead of 
alternate Fridays to ensure training opportunities with volunteers and to get 
a position as quickly as possible where milling could restart again.
The next inspection of the Mill would take place in March and would update 
the management on any further works necessary. 

The visitor numbers for the final months of 2018 were very good.
Windmill was 30% ahead of budget in terms of visitors numbers with 
March’s totals still to be included, which was a fantastic achievement.

It was agreed at the time of the meeting that a graph could be presented 
with the next agenda, containing the details of postcodes of visitors 
residence so that it could be used to promote the mill.

Community engagement

The Hampshire Cultural Trust was still involved with the community 
engagement scheme namely: Horizon 20:20 which was a four-year arts 
intervention programme run by Hampshire Cultural Trust, funded by Paul 
Hamlyn Foundation. Young people from The Bridge Education Centre had 
engaged with multiple arts intervention opportunities.

Marketing

A new edition of “What’s on for Families” was delivered in the number of 
15000 copies. It promoted various upcoming events on all of the sites run by 
HCT.
Hampshire Cultural Trust continued to promote the Windmill on social 
media.
New site specific leaflet was produced and delivered instead of “What’s On” 
guide, which it replaced.

34. FINANCE REPORT

HCT staff delivered the finance report covering the period up to January 
2019.
Members asked that a more detailed report is delivered at the time of next 
meeting and especially at the March 2020 meeting so that the Committee 
would be able to participate in setting the forthcoming budget.

35. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING

The date and venue for the next meeting would be confirmed in due time.

M6273

2



1

AGENDA ITEM NO. x

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: FRIDAY 26TH JULY
Title of Report: COMMUNITY MANAGER’S REPORT
Author: EMMA BANKS 

Purpose:

1 Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery

The site remained closed for winter during February but the site team were ready prepping 
for re-opening with a pre-season training session that covered relevant H&S training, site 
updates and event briefings/planning. 

Following changes to the staffing team, from March additional staffing resources were 
allocated to the Windmill. Gary Freeman takes on the Caretaker/Miller role three days a 
week (Friday, Saturday & Sunday) during the open season and one day a week (Friday) 
during the closed period. This additional time will not only support the delivery of the mill 
maintenance programme, allow additional hours for the comprehensive Volunteer Miller 
training programme to be delivered but the role description now more accurately reflects 
business needs.   

After a quiet start to the season in March visitor numbers picked up significantly into the 
spring and early summer. The first special event of the season Science Weekend saw a 
fantastic 163 visitors over the weekend. The family event involved make and take activities 
and science experiments. 

Volunteer Stephen leading a family science themed craft activity

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill
Covering period Feb 2019 – Jun 2019

3

Agenda Item 5



2

On the 10th April we held a half term activity ‘Birds of Bursledon’. Visitor figures were 
disappointing for this activity, however overall in April the total visitor figures were still 
comparable to the 2018 numbers. The low activity is likely to be due to the fact that other 
local visitor attractions are now holding activities on a Wednesday and also perhaps 
because the theme did not have enough of a draw for families.  

The Easter Extravaganza event on April 20th and 21st was successful with over 100 visitors 
enjoying an Easter Egg hunt around the grounds, receiving a chocolate prize on 
completion and an Easter themed craft activity.

Young visitors to the Easter Extravaganza weekend

National Mills weekend on 11th-12th May saw over 100 visitors celebrating with craft 
activities, talking to the amateur radio enthusiasts who were broadcasting from site to mills 
around the country and abroad, plus touring the windmill and following the process from 
grain to loaf. Some visitors brought a picnic with them and enjoyed spending time outside 
and exploring the woodland. 

Children with their mills made at National Mills Weekend Craft Activity

4



3

Despite inclement weather our half term Pond Dipping and Bug Bonanza activity on 29th 
May was hugely successful with 79 visitors over 3 hours enjoying a host of activities 
including; pond dipping and identifying their finds, bug hunting, completing our woodland 
trail and doing a creepy crawly craft activity.

Finds photographed by visitors to the Pond Dipping and Bug Bonanza Half Term Activity 
Day and a family getting ready to find some pond life.

The Strawberry Festival on the weekend of 15th & 16th June was a huge success with 323 
visitors to the site. They were treated with a selection of local craft and produce available 
to purchase, a strawberry trail, strawberry themed make and take craft activities, a 
delicious strawberry cream tea stall delivered by the Women’s Institute, historic strawberry 
photographs, a talk on the history of the strawberry industry in the locality from local 
historian Geoff Martin and of course strawberries for sale!

One review received from a visitor that weekend was; 

An impromptu visit today and I’m so glad we chose it, can’t believe we hadn’t been here before & 
on our doorstep. The staff are lovely & so knowledgeable and didn’t mind answering my daughter’s 
unusual questions! The grounds are beautiful, unspoilt & peaceful. We’ll definitely be back to visit 
soon. - Joanne

5



4

The mill was operational again on the weekend 16th March and we were able to 
demonstrate the grinding of flour to our visitors. 

In March recruited three people to the Assistant Miller role, however only one has been 
able to commit to continue in the role. This is due to both the fitness level required for the 
role and family commitments. We are still actively recruiting for additional volunteers to join 
the Assistant Miller team and are advertising via the new HCT volunteer webpages, the 
Scene magazine and One Community volunteering services. 

A report will be developed to consider the options with regard to commercial milling. This 
will include an overview of the Health & Safety requirements, Food Hygiene requirements 
and staffing needs that would need to be met in order to mill flour for sale. Depending on 
the outcome of the report it is not anticipated that commercial milling could realistically 
take place before the replacement of the stocks and sails. 

1.2 Visitor Figures

The visitor figures have been excellent so far for the 2019-2020 season. We are currently 
63% ahead of budget in terms of visitor figures, this is a fantastic achievement for the 
team. This has mostly been achieved due the popularity of the special event weekends, 
especially the huge success of the Strawberry Festival Event weekend. 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals

2011 –
2012

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866

2012 –
2013

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314

2013 –
2014

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719

2014 – 
2015 252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152

2015-
2016 298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109 142 263 3213

2016-
2017 170 124 150 142 309 160 148 59 Closed Closed Closed 142 1404

2017 - 
2018 152 124 171 208 519 377 350 106 169 

Closed Closed Closed 174 2350

2018 - 
2019 208 178 295 179 434 915 323 197 207 

Closed Closed Closed 323 3259

2019-
2020 206 276 567

6



5

2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice

2.1 Caring for collections 

The Mill Inspection with Luke Bonwick took place in March giving an update the condition 
of the mill and necessary works. A meeting took place with the Head of Community- 
Deborah Neubeuar, Head of Programming - Jaana Rowhel, Conservator - Nigel Spender 
and Community Manager - Emma Banks to review the updated report. 

The outcome was a revised schedule of works to be managed by Conservator Nigel 
Spender to take place in September 2019. Nigel will be assisted in this work by 
Miller/Caretaker Gary Freeman. The large piece of essential work, to replace the stocks 
and sails is planned to take place next summer, assuming sufficient funding can be 
sourced. 

3 Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement 

3.1 Community Engagement

The ICE Project Celebration event was held at The Point in Eastleigh on 25 March 2019; 
the artwork and achievements of 90 vulnerable young people from across the county 
including dance, drama, music and film were shared to an audience of 200 people. 
The ICE Project Art Exhibition; visual artwork made by vulnerable young people from 
across the county were showcased in the public gallery spaces at The Point, Eastleigh. 
This included photography by young people accessing CAMHS, an installation by young 
carers and creative sculpture by LGBT+ young people.  

Hampshire Cultural Trust continue to work with The Bridge Education Centre in Eastleigh 
as part of the Horizon 20:20 programme.  In the spring term students from the centre 
worked with artists exploring resin casting and metal workshops.  

Case Study: ‘Monday we had student D again in the session. I know, from listening in the 
staff room, he had trouble engaging in other lessons but during the day but he was 
desperate to join the art room and when he did come for his art session he engaged and 
continued with the piece he started last week. In fact when I was in the staff room I found it 
hard to believe he was the same pupil they had been discussing. I think perfect proof that 
art and creativity increases engagement and is definitely crucial to education.’ Elizabeth 
Hodgson, Metalwork Artist

This project continues until Summer 2020 and we are currently looking at securing funding 
for another 3 years.

7



6

Artwork produced by Horizon 2020 Participant

3.2 Out of hour’s bookings

A group of 11 staff and volunteers from the Ealing Tide Mill Experience visited us on 20th 
March and thoroughly enjoyed their visit.

We had two out of hour’s visits during this period from Hamble Cubs, they also visited last 
year so it is good to see we have become a regular fixture in their calendar. 

We also held an evening visit for Bursledon Local History Society in June and we have 
further booking for later in the summer. 

3.3 School Bookings

Swaything Primary School brought along a class of 30 pupils in May to do the ‘Little Red 
Hen’ session delivered by learning facilitators. 
 
Two classes from Sharps Copse Primary School visited in June with a total of 45 pupils 
enjoying the Key Stage 1 ‘Little Red Hen’ session. 

4    Marketing and Communications

4.1 Print material

A new edition of “What’s On for Families” for the Spring period and featuring Bursledon 
Windmill was delivered in March. 15,000 copies were printed and it was circulated via our 
distributors, Culture Calling, to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, 
educational establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc.

4.2 Online marketing

The HCT monthly e-newsletter featuring exhibitions and events from Bursledon, has been 
sent to sign ups on the HCT database, which has over 15,000 subscribers. Windmill 
events have been promoted in the newsletter and on the website.

8



7

4.3 Research

Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at Bursledon Windmill on an ongoing 
basis. These are profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information 
on which groups of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor 
profiles compare to the local area. This feeds into the service and marketing planning 
processes. 

Bursledon Windmill is also taking part in the Visitor Survey project, this involves taking 
questionnaires from a cross section of visitors to provide feedback from those who visit 
which we can then use to improve both our marketing and the service the Windmill 
provides.
 
4.4 Social Media

The Community Manger, Visitor Service Assistant and Miller/Caretaker have been working 
hard to develop and create increased engagement via Social Media. A new Instagram 
profile has been created and the Bursledon Windmill Facebook page now has 1329 ‘likes’ 
and 1429 ‘followers’ an increase of 28% and 35% from January 2019. More importantly we 
have increased engagement with our content; for example on 28 February 2019 our 
Facebook posts reached (appeared on their Facebook feed) 4,902 people in just one day.

Post from the Bursledon Windmill Instagram Page

HCT Facebook now has over 3815 “likes” and twitter 5686 followers. Events at Bursledon 
Windmill are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.  Those we have 
promoted during the period include Strawberry Fayre and Pond Dipping half term activity.

Emma Banks, July 2019

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, March 2019  
	
	

1 

 
 
Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire – Condition Inspection Update Report 
Luke Bonwick 
Bonwick Heritage Consultancy  
28th March 2019 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The mill was inspected by Luke Bonwick on Friday 22nd March in the presence of Gary the miller 
and Emma Banks of HCT. 
 
Recent developments on site were discussed. 
 
This report provides a short update on Bonwick HC’s previous illustrated report dated 16th July 
2018. 
 
 
 
Executive summary 
 
No major changes in the condition of the mill have occurred since Bonwick HC’s previous report 
of July 2018. 
 
The millstone cases, grain bins and associated equipment have been cleaned out to allow milling 
to recommence.  
 
Test milling sessions by wind power were carried out in March 2019 and proved very successful. 
 
Repairs to the reefing stage are still required. 
 
Repairs to the south door at first floor level are still required. 
 
Extensive repairs to the timber stocks supporting the sails are still required. 
 
Repairs to the chain purchase wheel at the rear of the cap are still required. 
 
  

11



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, March 2019  
	
	

2 

Update to condition survey 
 
REFER TO BONWICK HC’s PREVIOUS REPORT OF JULY 2018. 
 
Report 
reference 

Component Condition 

   
2.1 Reefing stage Unchanged. The stage still requires extensive repair.  
2.2  Doors and windows Unchanged. Repairs to the south west door frame are 

still required, but measuring up is in progress (May 
2019) with a view to repairing the door sill and floor 
boarding close by. 

2.3  Walls Externally: unchanged. Repairs are still required. 
Internally: mould cleaned off and walls re-limewashed. 

2.4 Internal floors Grain bins at 2nd floor level have been cleaned out. 
Otherwise unchanged. 

2.5  Cap roof Unchanged. The barrier frame inside the cap roof 
remains in position, making access into and around the 
cap (for staff members) difficult. The cap cladding 
continues to deteriorate but remains generally 
watertight. 

3.1 Winding gear Unchanged. Chain purchase wheel still requires repair. 
3.2 Sails Unchanged. Condition of stocks supporting sails 

remains a concern. 
3.3 Windshaft, brake 

wheel & brake 
These remain in good working order. A problem with the 
safety chock that prevents the brake wheel (and sails) 
from turning was recently rectified by Gary. This item 
was damaged during recent high winds when the sails 
were forced around by a small amount. 

3.4 Wallower etc These remain in good working order. The wallower still 
requires surveying and truing up. 

3.5 Stone nuts etc The stone nut was put into gear and tested by the 
miller, and shown to run successfully with no issues. 

3.6 Millstones and 
furniture 

The eastern millstone furniture has been dismantled, 
thoroughly cleaned out and reassembled. The millstones 
have been tested in gear recently and found to produce 
flour to a satisfactory standard. 

 
 
  

12



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, March 2019  
	
	

3 

Conclusions 
 
During recent strong winds in March 2019, the opportunity was taken to test the operation of 
the millstones using wind power.  
 
The test milling sessions have produced satisfactory results and show that the mill is capable of 
producing flour by wind power when the wind is strong enough and is blowing from a suitable 
direction. 
 
Extensive tree growth in the area directly surrounding the mill severely limits the occasions on 
which the sails of the mill can be turned. Only in exceptional circumstances – on a handful of 
occasions per year – are the conditions suitable for milling by wind power. 
 
It is essential that finances are found to cover the outstanding repairs to the sails and reefing 
stage described in the previous report. The deteriorating condition of the cap roof covering was 
also noted in the previous report. 
 
END OF REPORT 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  1

 
 
 
 
 
Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire – Condition Inspection Report 
Bonwick Heritage Consultancy 18th July 2018 
 
The mill was inspected by Luke Bonwick on two separate occasions: on 11th May and 11th July 
2018. On the first visit the principal machinery was viewed in operation, with millstones out of 
gear. On the second visit the mill was not operated. 
 
This inspection report comprises the following sections: 
 

1. Background information        2 

2. Structural elements – condition       3 

3. Mechanical elements – condition      9 

4. Summary of recommendations for repair and levels of priority  12 

 
Figures 1-20          14 

  

15



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  2 

1. Background information 
 
The windmill was acquired by Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust in 1978. During the next 
ten years, restoration of the mill to working order was planned and implemented.  
 
The designs for the new parts of the windmill were prepared during the early 1980s by architect 
and mill author John Reynolds of the Hampshire County Architects Department.  
Carpenter Jim Lewis built the new cap, the brake wheel and windshaft, wallower and great spur 
wheel. He was responsible for the mechanical repairs and for repairing the hurst frame that 
supports the millstones. Clarks (Builders) repaired and rebuilt the internal floors, and volunteer 
Nicholas Kerson constructed the wooden grain storage bins and the millstone furniture. Builder 
Robert Taylor was responsible for the groundworks.  
 
The first floor reefing stage was constructed by Carpenter Oak and Woodland Ltd of Totnes. Oak 
for the reefing stage came from the County Council’s supply of storm-damaged timber acquired 
after the 1987 and 1990 gales.  
 
Millwrights E. Hole & Son of Burgess Hill built the new sails, stocks and chain wheel. The new 
sails of the mill first turned by wind power on 24th June 1990.  
 
In January 2012 the sails were removed by Hampshire millwright Ian Clark after severe rot was 
identified in the poll end of the wooden windshaft. The mill was then out of action until a new 
windshaft was made fitted by millwright Malcolm Cooper of Melksham in 2014. The sail frames 
were also renewed at this time, but the existing stocks were re-used. These had originally been 
acquired from a Lancashire textile mill during the 1980s. 
 
Management of the windmill is now the responsibility of the Hampshire Cultural Trust. At 
present, the mill is generally in working order, but has not ground corn by wind power for some 
time. Mechanical problems with the wedging of the brake wheel and the windshaft tail journal 
were rectified during 2018, enabling the sails to be demonstrated in action on 11th May.  
 
(Historical dates from HBPT’s Annual Report of 1990) 
 
  

16



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  3 

2. Structural elements – condition 
 
2.1 Reefing stage 
 
Figures 4 & 5 show the stage under construction. The principal components of the stage, 
referred to below, are identified in Figures 7 & 8. 
 

Numeral LH 
spreaders 

RH 
spreaders 

Principal hz 
beams 

Principal struts to 
ground 

I Fair Fair Fair Fair 

II Sound Sound Fair Fair 

III Sound Fair Fair Fair 

IV Fair Fair Fair Fair 

V Fair Sound Fair Fair 

VI Sound Fair  Poor Fair 

VII Fair Fair Poor (split) Fair 

VIII Fair Fair Fair Fair 

IX Fair Fair Poor (split) Fair 

X Fair Fair Fair Poor (split) 

XI Fair Poor Poor (split) Fair 

XII Poor Fair Fair Fair 

XIII Fair Sound Fair Fair 

XIV Sound Poor Poor Fair 

XV Fair Fair Fair Fair 

XVI Fair Poor Fair Fair 

XVII Fair Fair Poor (split) Fair 

XVIII Sound Sound Fair Fair 

XIX Fair Fair Fair Poor (split & ivy) 

XX Sound Poor Poor (split) Poor (woodworm) 

XXI Sound Fair Poor (split) Fair 

XXII Sound Fair Fair Fair 

XXIII Fair Fair Fair Fair 

XXIV Poor Sound Fair Fair 

 

Connections The connections between the handrail posts and principal beams are all 
weak and wobbly. The joints between the ends of the handrails and the 
posts are very short and weathered, and therefore structurally weak. 

Handrail posts All are weak and weathered. 

Upper handrails All are weathered and (as stated above) their connection to the posts is 
poor. The upper corners of the handrails should be curved. 

Intermediate 
rails (3x) 

All are weathered. Two additional rails were added above and below the 
central rail at some time after the original 1990s restoration – 
presumably for safety reasons. 

Girding beams 
(kick boards) 

Girding beams (Kick boards) – all are weathered but connections 
between boards are strong due to the addition of metal angle plates. 

Stretcher joists These are positioned underneath the feet of the two short flights of 
steps down to the stage from the millstone floor. They are all in poor 
condition. 

Deck boards These appear to have been renewed at the time of the 2014 repairs. 
They are generally sound with robust stainless steel fixings, but some 
boards have been fitted to defective spreader plates. 

 
  

17



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  4 

Summary and repair requirements 
 
All of the oak timbers of the staging are now heavily weathered externally. The condition of the 
timbers varies from relatively new and sound to weakened original (1980s) timbers.  
 
The staging was constructed from untreated, unpainted timber. Most of this would have been 
‘green’ when it was installed and consequently a number of timbers have twisted and split as 
they have dried out. 
 
In view of its age and the variable condition of its component parts, it is recommended that the 
stage is entirely renewed, using seasoned oak wherever possible. This could either be done in 
one phase, or it could be carried out gradually as labour and funds allow, focusing on the 
weakest areas as a priority. 
 
When the staging is renewed, the surfaces and mating faces of the timbers should be oiled and 
stained a suitable dark colour. This will better protect them from the effects of the weather and 
extend their life. It will prevent a repeat of the current situation where water can lodge in the 
joints between unpainted timber surfaces, creating a ‘soggy sandwich’ which allows wet rot to 
take hold. 
 
The design of the connections between adjacent timbers should also be improved in order to 
strengthen the assembly. Alternative joint details should be substituted in certain areas, eg. 
between the handrail posts and the principal horizontal beams. In other areas, bespoke 
galvanised steel brackets should be added to provide reinforcement. 
 
Consideration should be given to improving or covering over the connection between the 
principal beams of the stage and the tower walls. Here, the beam ends rest on brick corbels and 
birds have nested in the gaps; the nests retain moisture which can be absorbed by the beam 
ends and the tower brickwork, creating conditions for decay. 
 
2.2 Doors and windows 
 

Level Position Condition Action 

Ground 
floor 

East door 
(main door) 

Lower edges of door boards decayed 
below lower ledge (up to 300mm 
from bottom). 
 

Remove and repair lower 
part of door. Re-hang and 
redecorate. 

 West door Lower edges of door boards decayed 
below lower ledge (up to 300mm 
from bottom). 
 

Remove and repair lower 
part of door. Re-hang and 
redecorate. 

 North window Minor splits in frame and putty at 
bottom. 

Re-putty & redecorate. Oil 
hinges. 

 West window Infilled with brickwork.  

First 
floor 

South west 
door to stage 

Lower leaf of door decayed (up to 
500mm from bottom). Oak sill 
decayed. Significant gap between 
sides of door frame and brickwork. 
Water penetration evident internally 
above, to sides and below door. 
Cracks in brickwork and damage to 
pointing evident at sides and below 
door externally. 

Remove lower door leaf and 
staircase to staging. Renew 
and decorate sill. Re-seal 
around frame and between 
sill and top tread of 
staircase. Carry out 
brickwork repairs externally 
on either side of, and below, 
door. Redecorate brickwork. 
Redecorate and re-fit door. 

18



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  5 

 North door to 
stage 

Minor decay to lower edge of door. 
Crack between frame and brickwork. 

Remove lower leaf and carry 
out any necessary repairs.  

 East window Appears sound. Fill any cracks, re-putty and 
redecorate. Oil hinges. 

Second 
floor 

North east 
window 

Lower part weathered. Clean away dead insects. Fill 
all cracks, re-putty and 
redecorate. Oil hinges. 

 South west 
window 

Lower part weathered. Clean away dead insects. Fill 
all cracks, re-putty and 
redecorate. Oil hinges. 

Third 
floor 

South window Casement is in poor condition. 
Cracks between frame and 
brickwork. 

Remove casement and 
repair/renew it. Re-putty 
and redecorate. Fill cracks 
around frame and 
redecorate. 

    

 
Summary and repair requirements 
 
The lower parts of all the doors show signs of decay, though much of this is hidden by the paint 
surface. Repairs are not yet urgent but should be undertaken as soon as funds and labour 
permit. 
 
The windows generally require cleaning down, re-puttying and redecorating, with the exception 
of the casement of the third floor window which requires heavier repair. 
 
The area of greatest concern is around the south west door to the reefing stage at first floor 
level. There is evidence of water penetration through the brickwork above, to either side and 
below the door (see 2.3 below). This area should be opened up and repaired as a high priority. 
 
2.3 Walls 
 
Externally 
 
The tower brickwork has been decorated with a matt black finish externally. This is generally in 
a good condition but will need to be re-coated within the next three years. 
 
As described in the table above, the area of brickwork around the south west door to the reefing 
stage is showing signs of cracking and damage (Figure 6). This is due to the extremes of sun, 
rain and the prevailing winds which buffet this face of the tower relentlessly throughout the 
year. Repair of this area is required urgently. 
 
Internally 
 
The limewash finish to the interior brickwork is in an excellent condition. The sole area of 
concern is immediately below first floor level on the south west side. This area of brickwork is 
only visible and accessible from the mezzanine platform. 
 
Here, the brickwork has clearly been affected by water ingress around the south west stage door 
for many months. There is a build-up of mould on the wall surface and slugs are present (Figure 
10).  
 
This problem is associated with the damage to the brickwork visible externally (see comments 
above). Repair of the tower exterior surrounding the door is urgently required to allow the tower 
wall to dry out in this area.  

19



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  6 

2.4 Internal floors 
 
Floor structure generally 
 
Great care has been taken during the mill’s restoration to insert the joist and beam ends into the 
walls using protective sleeves of plastic and lead. Sheet lead has been used to protect the beam 
ends and a plastic membrane has been used to protect the ends of the joists. This provision 
should protect the structural timbers indefinitely, but it is nevertheless important to ensure that 
the exterior brickwork of the tower is maintained in good condition. 
 
Ground floor beams 
 
The beams at head height on ground floor level run east-west. They carry the weight of the 
lower end of the upright shaft and millstone spindles. A narrow mezzanine supported by these 
beams gives access to the millstone governor and two of the stone nuts. 
 
The beams have been heavily repaired at their ends with metal flitch plates extending into the 
wall. The repairs appear to remain sound. 
 
First floor beams 
 
These have been renewed and also run east-west. 
 
Second floor beams 
 
These run north-south and are the originals. They are of heavy section in order to support the 
weight of stored grain above, and have been heavily repaired at their ends with metal brackets. 
The repairs appear sound. Several joists at second floor level appear to be the re-used originals. 
 
Third floor beams 
 
These are of historic appearance and have been repaired at their ends with metal brackets. 
 
Floor surfaces 
 
The ground floor is of brick. This seems to have been installed in such a way as to allow the floor 
to breathe, as there is no evidence of staining on the walls which would suggest that dampness 
is being directed outwards and is being absorbed by the tower brickwork. 
 
The first, second and third floors are boarded. All are in a sound condition with the exception of 
the first floor. Here, particularly in the area surrounding the south west reefing stage door, the 
boards have been affected by water ingress and have shrunk considerably. Some have begun to 
decay (Figure 9). 
 
Internal ladders 
 
The internal ladders and handrails have all been constructed of oak with a sawn finish. 
 
Although the ladders and handrails are in a sound condition, these items would originally have 
been constructed of softwood with a planed finish. The handrails in particular are of rectangular 
section with little or no joinery detailing. The sawn finish is unpleasant to look at and to handle, 
as well as being non-traditional.  
 
The atmosphere inside the mill would be significantly improved if the handrails were renewed in 
softwood to a planed finish, incorporating curved upper surfaces and improved jointing details. 

20



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  7 

Housekeeping 
 
All the windows in the mill, or the majority of them, should be left open when a member of staff 
is on site. This allows air flow to naturally ventilate the building, preventing the build-up of 
dampness inside which, as well as being unhealthy, can also lead to mould growth and decay. 
 
The grain bins at second floor level have not been cleaned out for some time and are full of 
detritus, spiders and dead insects. The lids and any detachable panels should be removed and 
the interiors thoroughly swept and vacuumed. 
 
2.5 Cap roof 
 
Design 
 
The cap roof is clad with feather-edged weatherboarding set horizontally. It is constructed on a 
rectangular plan with a front wall, a rear wall and two curved and sloping side walls (Figure 3). 
There are projecting dormers in the front and rear walls. The front dormer protects the neck 
bearing of the windshaft and features an access hatch. The rear dormer allows access to the 
rear platform and chain wheel through a pair of small doors. 
 
The cap roof was originally a different shape, as shown in an early photo (Figure 2). It had 
straight rafters converging at a flat summit. The sides of the cap in between the rafters were flat 
and horizontally boarded, with projecting corners at the rafter positions. In the old photograph a 
front dormer is visible but a rear dormer is not. 
 
If funds permit, consideration should be given to correcting the design of the roof to match the 
early illustrations. 
 
Cladding 
 
There are many nooks and crannies in the cap which are full of cobwebs, spiders and dead flies. 
These prevent the true condition of the weatherboarding in all areas from being inspected. They 
should be thoroughly brushed and vacuumed out as a high priority. 
 
The cap’s weatherboard cladding is decorated with a black finish externally. The boarding on the 
sides of the cap is in better condition than that of the front and rear gables. Here, numerous 
splits are visible and the cladding has begun to leak. The need for repair is urgent in order to 
prevent further deterioration which could affect the oak cap ribs and other structural timbers. It 
should first be made weatherproof while plans to re-board the front and rear walls of the cap are 
formulated. 
 
In the long term (5-10 years), the cladding of the cap is likely to require wholesale renewal. 
 
Cap base frame 
 
This is generally well protected by the roof cladding with suitable flashings and soakers, 
particularly at the four corners where the joints of the cap frame are exposed. 
 
At the rear LH corner there is evidence of water penetration through the cladding which has 
begun to affect the rear end of the LH sheer. This requires further investigation; it may be that 
the splits in the weatherboards are allowing rainwater to penetrate here. 
 
The rear ends of both sheers are capped with Code 4 lead sheet where they pass through the 
weatherboarding and are exposed to the elements (Figure 3, Figure 12). Although this has 
served well to protect the vulnerable upper faces of the sheers, some wide cracks are visible in 

21



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  8 

the undersides of both timbers at their exposed rear ends. These areas should be carefully 
inspected from a cherry picker or access scaffold, and any repairs carried out at the same time. 
 
The rear cross beam rests over the rear ends of the sheers and supports the chain purchase 
wheel (Figure 12). At its ends, degradation of the upper surface of the timber is visible. The 
ends should be repaired, redecorated and covered with sheet metal to protect them and avoid 
further deterioration of this timber. 
 
Barrier frame inside cap 
 
A wooden frame comprising barriers and access gates has been erected inside the cap (Figure 
11). At the start of recent repairs to the windshaft/brake wheel, the frame was found to be 
rickety and was temporarily reinforced with extra brackets. 
 
The intended purpose of the wooden barrier frame is unclear. In practical terms, the frame is 
large and bulky and impedes safe movement around the cap for the purposes of maintenance. It 
makes the movement of people and equipment into and around the cap more hazardous than it 
would otherwise be. The gates have sharp fittings and edges which are dangerous whenever one 
or other is opened to allow access into or out of the cap. 
 
It is recommended that the existing frame is removed and a more appropriate system of safety 
barriers is designed. This should incorporate improved joinery details and smooth edges to avoid 
clothing being snagged on the components. 
 
  

22



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  9 

3. Mechanical elements – condition 
 
3.1 Winding gear 
 
Reduction gears 
 
The winding gear appears to operate satisfactorily. Close inspection of the reduction gears in the 
cap shows the teeth to be devoid of grease. This will cause them to wear out more quickly and 
make them stiffer in operation. 
 
Grease should be applied to the gear teeth on a quarterly basis with a paintbrush, taking care 
not to over-grease the meshing gears. The twist-greasers on the bearings should be checked for 
correct operation, refilled as necessary and used on a monthly basis. As with the gear teeth, the 
bearings should not be over-greased. 
 
Chain purchase wheel 
 
The chain wheel carries an endless chain which extends almost to reefing stage level for the 
purposes of turning the cap so that the sails face the oncoming wind. The wheel comprises a 
central hub of cast iron, oak spokes and a segmental oak rim. A central channel in the rim 
contains metal forks which engage the chain. The whole wheel is decorated with black paint. 
 
The woodwork of the wheel was renewed during the 1980s. Some of the spokes and parts of the 
rim are now severely decayed due to rainwater lodging in the joints and being unable to escape 
(Figures 13 & 14). 
 
The oak spokes have long tongues which extend into the central circle of the cast iron hub 
(Figure 13). However, an early photograph shows that the oak tongues were not originally 
present (Figure 2). 
 
The chain wheel now requires substantial rebuilding. Any parts not in perfect condition should be 
replaced. The design of the arms and rim should be reassessed to improve the longevity of the 
rebuilt wheel. An indestructible and virtually maintenance-free solution would be to renew the 
arms and rim in stainless or galvanised mild steel, which could be decorated black after a short 
period of exposure to the weather. 
 
3.2 Sails 
 
Condition of stocks and sail frames 
 
The sail frames were renewed in 2014 and set up again on the existing stocks which, by this 
time, were deemed not to have deteriorated too badly. 
 
Five years on, the external surfaces of the stocks are showing signs of cracking. This is most 
noticeable around the innermost fixings which clamp the sail frames to the stocks. These fixings 
are located close to the poll end at the centre of the assembly, which is the area of greatest 
stress. The black fixings can be seen in Figure 3. 
 
For security, additional fixings in the form of wooden ‘stop blocks’ have been added to the stocks 
at their junction with the windshaft. These cause additional fixings to penetrate the timber just 
at the point of greatest weakness. Water entering around these fixings will cause rot to spread 
inside the timber without it being visible externally. 
 
The sail frames themselves are only five years old, but due to the time constraints imposed by 
the 2014 project, these were made in a very short space of time.  

23



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  10 

 
It was not possible to obtain full-length pieces of timber for the outer hemlath or the central 
uplong of each sail, so these components had to be made in two lengths and are consequently 
weaker than they should be.  
 
Some of the fixings are undersized and have been over-tightened so that they pull into the 
timber. 
 
The joints between many of the timbers are giving cause for concern. A process that often gets 
omitted during the construction of sails is the painting of the mating surfaces prior to assembly. 
If this is not done, the joints will absorb and hold moisture, which very soon results in serious 
decay. 
 
Summary and repair requirements 
 
The current appearance of the stocks and the sail frames, coupled with the considerable age of 
the stocks, gives serious cause for concern. It would be unwise to continue to run the sails year 
on year without putting in place plans for a major overhaul. This can only be done by lowering 
the sails and stocks to ground level, stripping off the existing paint finish and thoroughly 
examining the condition of the timbers. 
 
It is likely that, when this is done, one or possibly both stocks will require renewal. In addition, 
the sail frames are likely to require extensive repair which may also amount to the renewal of 
the majority of the key timbers. 
 
3.3 Windshaft, brake wheel and brake mechanism 
 
Following recent repairs to re-align and re-wedge the brake wheel on the windshaft, these items 
are now back in working order. The tail journal of the windshaft has been re-wedged securely 
and a removable metal cover fitted over it. This is visible in Figure 11. 
 
The tooth profiles of the cogs fitted to the brake wheel are uneven. Some improvements have 
been made, and the gearing runs more quietly than it did previously, but more work on the cog 
profiles is required. 
 
The poll end of the windshaft has not been treated or decorated since it was installed in 2014. 
This now requires drenching in clear, spirit-based timber preservative followed by redecoration.  
 
A tight-fitting cap of sheet metal, clamped and fixed over the exposed end grain of the shaft, 
would prevent water ingress into the heart of the timber at this vulnerable position. This feature 
may well extend the life of the windshaft significantly. 
 
3.4 Wallower, upright shaft & great spur wheel 
 
The principal gearing turns easily.  
 
The wooden wallower appears to have dried out considerably since it was made. As a result, the 
wheel is no longer circular, and the rim and cogs (gear teeth) run out of true. A careful survey of 
the wallower is required in order to determine how the different parts of the wheel have 
expanded and contracted in relation to one another.  
 
The results of the survey will determine whether the rim of the wheel should be trimmed with a 
router to make it circular or whether it can be drawn back into line and clamped in position. It 
may be necessary to temporarily remove some or all of the wallower’s cogs in order to repair it. 
 

24



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  11 

3.5 Stone nuts and drive gearing to millstones 
 
The drive to the millstones was not inspected and will be surveyed on a separate occasion when 
it can be put into gear and its operation observed. 
 
3.6 Millstones and furniture 
 
Two of the three pairs of millstones, on the south and east sides, have been restored to working 
order and are complete with their wooden millstone cases and hoppers. A third pair on the west 
side has been dismantled so the working surfaces of the millstones can be seen. 
 
The eastern pair of stones is the pair most recently in commission. These have not been cleaned 
out since the last time milling was attempted, and grain remains in the shoe.  
 
In order to inspect the eastern millstone pair fully, it will be necessary to remove the wooden 
millstone case and raise the top (runner) stone off the bedstone. This will allow the working 
surfaces of both millstones to be checked for level and re-cut if necessary (Figure 15). 
 
The dismantled elements of the southern pair of millstones were inspected, and it was noted 
that the millstone case has sustained some minor damage. 
 
  

25



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  12 

4. Summary of recommendations for repair and levels of priority 
 
Proposed Bonwick HC inputs in red. 
 

Item Component Proposed action Priority level 

    

2.1 Reefing 
stage 

Renew reefing stage woodwork, prioritising most 
significantly decayed areas. Treat & stain timbers 
prior to assembly. Improve design of jointing 
details. Improve weathering details at connection 
with tower. 

High 

2.2 Doors & 
windows 

Remove SW door to reefing stage. Renew sill. 
Repair frame and improve weathering details. 
Repair and re-hang door. 

URGENT 

  Repair casement of 3rd floor (south) window. High 

  Repair & redecorate remaining doors & windows. Medium 

2.3 Walls Repair and redecorate external brickwork and 
pointing above, to either side of and below SW 
reefing stage door. 

URGENT 

  Clean down mould in corresponding area of 
brickwork internally, accessible via mezzanine. 

URGENT 

2.4 Floors Carry our minor repairs to weathered/shrunken 
boards of first floor on SW side. 

High 

  Renew handrails to internal ladders in softwood to 
modified design. 

High 

  Ventilate mill whenever staffed by opening 
windows throughout. 

High 

  Clean out grain bins on 2nd floor. High 

2.5 Cap roof Produce drawings showing historic shape of cap 
roof. Carry out alterations to reinstate historic 
design. 

Medium 

  Clean out cap roof interior. URGENT 

  Weatherproof front and rear walls of cap. URGENT 

  Renew cladding to front and rear walls of cap. High 

  Inspect and report on condition of side and lower 
faces of rear sheer ends outside cap (from cherry 
picker). 

High 

  Cover exposed ends of rear cross beam with sheet 
metal. 

High 

  Remove safety barrier frame inside cap. Re-install 
to modified design. 

High 

3.1 Winding gear Lubricate gear teeth of reduction gears. URGENT 

  Rebuild chain purchase wheel, making minor 
design alterations to maximise its longevity. 

High 

3.2 Stocks & sail 
frames 

Lower sails and stocks to ground level. Inspect 
condition and agree detailed repair strategy. Carry 
out repairs/renewals. Redecorate components 
prior to re-assembly. Renew sail cloths. Re-install 
sails, test and balance. 

URGENT 

3.3 Windshaft & 
brake wheel 

Improve brake wheel cog profiles. Medium 

  Treat and redecorate poll end. URGENT 

  Fit protective cap over end grain. URGENT 

3.4 Wallower Survey wheel and repair/re-shape as necessary. Medium 

26



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  13 

  Improve wallower cog profiles. Medium 

3.5 Stone nuts & 
millstone 
drive 

Separate survey required. Medium 

3.6 Millstones 
and furniture 

Clean out old grain from east millstones. URGENT 

  Dismantle east millstones and turn runner stone 
over. Survey working faces of millstones and re-
dress as necessary. 

Medium 

  Carry out minor repairs to millstone case of south 
millstones. 

High 

    

    

 
 
  

27



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  14 

Figures 1-20 
 

 
 
Figure 1: Section through the mill as restored showing the key structural and mechanical parts. 
 
 
 

28



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  15 

 
 
Figure 2: The mill in dereliction in the early 20th century, viewed from the west. The staging and 
the sails have been removed. The unusual shape of the original cap roof with its straight rafters, 
tapering sides and flat top can be clearly seen (Hampshire Archives & Local Studies). 
 
 

29



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  16 

 
 

 
 
Figure 3: The mill as restored, viewed from the south east. The cap shape is much more 
streamlined with curved front and side walls and a straight ridge rather than a flat top. At the 
rear, the projecting cap sheers with their protective lead covering are clearly visible. 
 

30



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  17 

 
 
Figures 4 & 5: The construction of the reefing stage by Carpenter Oak and Woodland Ltd in 1990 
(Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust). 
 

 

 
Figure 6: Cracked and damaged brickwork on one side of the south west door to the reefing 
stage. 

31



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  18 

 
 
 

 

Figures 7 & 8: 
Details of the reefing stage with 
key components identified: 
 
A - Spreader plate 
B - Principal horizontal bearer 
C – Principal strut 
D – Girding beam (kick board) 
E – Decking board 
F – Handrail post 
G – Upper handrail 

32



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  19 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Figure 9 (above): Detail of south 
west doorway to reefing stage. 
Water ingress here has caused 
decay to the door sill and the 
floorboards just inside. The frame 
has begun to pull away from the 
adjacent brickwork. 
 
Figure 10 (left): The wall directly 
underneath the south west stage 
door, showing evidence of 
dampness and mould and slugs on 
the wall. Moisture held in the 
brickwork will eventually cause 
decay in the joists and main floor 
beams. 

33



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  20 

 
 
Figure 11: Inside the rear of the cap showing the wooden barrier frame and gates. 
 

 
 
Figure 12: The left side of the platform outside the rear of the cap. The exposed upper face of 
the rear cross beam has begun to deteriorate. 

34



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  21 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Figures 13 & 14: Details of the 
chain purchase wheel at the rear 
of the cap. Several of the oak 
spokes are severely decayed and 
the tongue of one of the spokes 
has broken off. 
 
The segmental rim is also 
showing its age and the 
components are decayed and 
misaligned. 

35



Bursledon Windmill, Hampshire          Condition Inspection Report          Bonwick HC, July 2018  22 

 
 
 Figure 15: Re-cutting or ‘dressing’ a millstone at Thelnetham windmill, Suffolk. The 

miller has separated the two stones and is dressing the runner or upper millstone. 
Red dye, known as ‘raddle’, has been applied to the surfaces of the stone with a 
straight flat timber. The raddle reveals the high spots which are then chipped off 
with a steel ‘mill bill’ that is tipped with tungsten carbide. 

36



Hampshire Cultural Trust

Bursledon Windmill JMC  Q1 2019-20

Expenditure Team Members Description Budget Forecast Prior Year Actual Budget Variance F/ (A)

1 Staff Costs

Community Manager 1 day a week, operational management £10,574 £10,574 £10,363 £2,644 £2,644 £0

Miller/Caretaker 3 days a week from March to November, 1 day a week from December - February £11,360 £11,360 £10,236 £2,840 £2,840 £0

Visitor Services Assistant 2 days a week from March to November, 1 day a month throughout the year £6,140 £6,140 £6,574 £1,535 £1,535 £0

Collections team 2 days a month, windmill conservation, maintenance £4,115 £4,115 £4,033 £1,029 £1,029 £0

Head of Community 1.5 days a month, strategic and team management £4,959 £4,959 £4,860 £1,240 £1,240 £0

Casual Staff Additional support for events and out of hours visits £0 £300 £1,288 £149 £0 -£149

2 Events Workshops, family activities, event days £400 £400 £0 £82 £100 £18

Venue Management Business rates, cleaning, refuge £2,324 £2,324 £3,281 £941 £581 -£360

3 Central Fundraising 6 days across the year - focused on fundraising campaign for windmill restoration £1,215 £1,215 £0 £300 £304 £4

Marketing Website, social media, digital content development, local press promotion £2,483 £2,483 £2,365 £621 £621 £0

Central Costs Central costs around staff, facilities and finance £14,434 £14,434 £13,747 £3,609 £3,609 £0

Total Expenditure £58,005 £58,306 £56,747 £14,989 £14,501 -£487

Income Budget Forecast Prior Year Actual Budget Variance

4 Hampshire Cultural Trust/HCC Through core funding from HCC and HCT £28,279 £28,279 £29,768 £7,070 £7,070 £0

5 Bursledon Earned Income Events, Retail £7,064 £9,500 £7,784 £2,589 £2,375 £214

6 Eastleigh Borough Council Annual Grant £18,136 £18,136 £18,136 £4,534 £4,534 £0

7 BPC Windmill Bursledon Parish Council grant £2,500 £2,500 £2,672 £0 £625 -£625

Total Income £55,979 £58,415 £58,360 £14,193 £14,604 -£411

Surplus/ (Deficit) -£2,026 £110 £1,612 -£796 £102 -£898

Notes:

4. Reduction in grant funding from HCC

5. Earned income expected to grow to mitigate the reduction in funding

6. Annual Grant income for 2019/20 yet to be received.

7. Grant submission for Bursledon Parish Council subject to approval

Full Year  YTD 

1. Staff Costs - Annual inflationary increase as well as a an increase in caretaker hours to enable mill maintenance during  closed season and to 4keep mill volunteers on board throughout the winter. VSA costs reduced foloowing a review of staffing  hours and 

increased miller's role.  Minimal Casual staff costs in 2019/20 due to changes in permanent staff hours.

2. Events budget to support larger programmes in  2019/20 in order to deliver revenue, increase visitor numbers as well as venue awareness. Reduction in venue related costs as one-off costs during 2018/19 not anticipated in 2019/20. YTD Actual VS Budget variance 

due to timing differences, this will even out during the year.

3. Initial costs to increase fundraising ask and project bids. One-off venue costs in 18/19 not anticipated for 2019/20. other Central costs largely in line with previous year.

37

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Curator's Report
	Bursledon Windmill BHC March 2019
	Bursledon Mill Bonwick HC report July 2018

	6 Finance Report

